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OTICE

Notice is hereby given that Fourth Annual General Meeting of SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE
LEMITED to be held at shorter notice on Friday, 29% September 2023 at 05.00 P.M. at Ground Floor,
Tower No.2, Equinox Business Park, Kurla, Mumbai-400070, India to transact the following
Business:

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS: -

1. Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive consider and adopt the Audited Balance sheet as at 31.03.2023, Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, together with the report of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

2. To approve the modification in the terms of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to
modify the terms and conditions of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures with respect to the
coupon rate and payment clause in the Term Sheet stands amended as under:

Coupon rate | Subject to applicable law, the CCD Holder shall be entitled to interest on the
and payment | principal amount of CCDs outstanding at a rate of 10.50 % per annum till
March 2029 and henceforth it would be 12.50% per annum, compounded
on a yearly basis, until conversion of the CCDs. The interest shall be subject
to deduction of Tax at source as required under the Income-Tax Act 1961
and the Rules made thereunder.

The actual payment towards coupons/ interest to the CCD Holders, post the
tax deduction at source, will be made subject to availability of distributable
cash only after the Company and Schloss Chanakya Private Limited or Schloss
Udaipur Private Limited or Schloss Chennai Private Limited ("Sister
Companies") have repaid the entire facilities aggregating to not more than
the principal amount of INR 2750 crores {"Loan”) availed by the Company
and the Sister Companies (jointly and severally) pursuant to the financing
documents executed on or around 30 September 2019 ("Financing
Documents”). The interest payments in any given year will be subject to
lenders consent and be restricted to the total interest payable on the senior
debt. The accrued and cumulative coupons / interest shall be carried forward
for payment on the next payment date. Notwithstanding the above, the tax
deduction at source on interest will be done and paid to the Government as
required under applicable law.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matter and things as may be considered necessary,
expedient, usual or proper to give effect to this resolution as they may in their absolute
discretion deemed necessary or desirable in connection thereof or any matter incidental
thereto.”

3. Any other matter with the permission of Chairman

By order of the Board
For Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

e

Ravi Shankar
Director
07967039

RO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-Sept-23




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office: The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New Dethi South

Dethi 110023 Tel No. +91 (11) 39331234 Email [d: cs@theleela.com
CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

NOTES:

10.

The explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013, relating to special business to be transacted at the meeting is
annexed.

The corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the
meeting in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the
company a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing such representative to attend
and vote on its behalf at the meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and, on a pol], to vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the
registered office of the company before the time fixed for the meeting.

Form for obtaining consent for holding this meeting at shorter notice is enclosed herewith.

For the convenience of the members the route map of the venue of the meeting is depicted
at the end of the Notice.

Members, Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring to the meeting,
the Attendance Slip enclosed herewith, duly completed and signed, mentioning therein
details of their DP ID and Client ID / Folio No.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.

The Members, whose names appear in the register of members/list of beneficial owners as
on 26-Sep-23 i.e. the cut-off date, shall be entitled to vote on the resolutions set forth in
this notice.

Save and except as mentioned elsewhere in this Notice, none of the Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives have any conflict of interest,
financially or otherwise, in the any of the resolutions as set out in the Notice.
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EXPLANATOR ENT PUR ECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 2:
The Company had issued Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD’s) as on 16t October, 2019

and as amended from time to time. It is proposed to modify the coupon rate and payment clause in
the Term Sheet as under:

Coupon rate and | Subject to applicable law, the CCD Holder shall be entitled to interest on the
payment principal amount of CCDs outstanding at a rate of 10.50 % per annum till
March 2029 and henceforth it would be 12.50% per annum, compounded
on a yearly basis, until conversion of the CCDs. The interest shall be subject
to deduction of Tax at source as required under the Income-Tax Act 1961
and the Rules made thereunder.

The actual payment towards coupons/ interest to the CCD Holders, post the
tax deduction at source, will be made subject to availability of distributable
cash only after the Company and Schloss Chanakya Private Limited or Schloss
Udaipur Private Limited or Schloss Chennai Private Limited ("Sister
Companies") have repaid the entire facilities aggregating to not more than
the principal amount of INR 2750 crores ("Loan") availed by the Company
and the Sister Companies (jointly and severally) pursuant to the financing
documents executed on or around 30 September 2019 ("Financing
Documents™). The interest payments in any given year will be subject to
lenders consent and be restricted to the total interest payable on the senior
debt. The accrued and cumulative coupons / interest shall be carried forward
for payment on the next payment date. Notwithstanding the above, the tax
deduction at source on interest will be done and paid to the Government as
required under applicable law.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution in Item No. 02 of
the notice as special resolution.

No directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned and interested in the
aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their shareholding and managerial interest in the
Company.

By order of the Board
For Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Ravi Shankar
Director
07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-Sept-23




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office: The Lesla Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New Delhi South

Delhi 110023 Tel No. +21 (11) 39331234 Email Id: cs@itheleela.com
CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

LIP FOR GENERAL MEETING
SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

Registered Office: The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New Delhi
South Delhi DL 110623
Venue of Annual General Meeting: - Ground Floor, Tower No.2, Equinox Business Park, Kurla,
Mumbai-400070 on 29% September 2023 at 5.00 P.M (IST)

Folio No./DP ID Client ID No.

Name of First Named Member/Proxy/Authorized
Representative

Name of Joint Member(s), if any:

No. of Shares held

Name of the Member /Proxy
(In BLOCK Letters)

Signature of the Member /Proxy/

Authorized Representative

Note:
1. Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring their attendance slip with them when they come
to attend the meeting and hand it over at the entrance after signing it.
2. Members/Proxy holders who come to attend at the meeting are requested to bring their copies of
the Notice convening this Annual General meeting.
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Form No.MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration}

Rutles, 2014}
CIN U55209DL2019PTC347492
Name of the Company Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Registered Office The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New Delhi South
Delhi DL 110023
VYenue of Annual Geperal Meeting Ground Floor, Tower No.2, Equinox Business Park, Kurla, Mumbai-400070

1/ We, being the member (s} of SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED holding......shares of the above named
Company, hereby appoint

1 Name:

Address:

E-maijl 1D:

Signature:

2 Name:

Address:

E-mail ID:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll} for me/us and on my/our behalf at an Annual General Meeting of members
of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 29th day of September 2023 at 5.00 PM - Ground Floor, Tower No.2, Equinox
Business Park, Kurla, Murmbai-400070 and at any adjournmect thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated

below:

Sr.Na. | Particulars For Against Abstain
1 Ordinary Business : Adeption of Financials for FY 2022-23

2. Special Business: Modification in the terms of CCD's

Signed this day of 2023

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Signed this day of 2023

Signature of Shareholder(s)
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

L This form of proxy in order to he effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2.1t is optional to indicate your preference. I you leave the "For” or “Against” column blank against any or all of the
resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate,
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Road map for the Venue is enclosed
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 1t is our pleasure to present the Fourth Annual Report of Schloss
Bangalore Private Limited together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023.

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (“the Company”) an Indian subsidiary of Project Ballet Bangalore
Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited was incorporated on 20 March 2019 under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by acquiring Bangalore
hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel
under the brand name of "THE LEELA".

Highlights of Financial Performance

Your company’s Standalone performance during the Financial Year 2022-23 as compared with that
of the previous Financial Year 2021-22 as summarized below.

(INR Millions)
Financial Year 2022-23 Financial Year 2021-22

Total Income 3,081.27 1,177.37
Total Expense 3.521.64 2.717.08
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (440.37) (1.539.71)
Provision for Tax 2 =

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (440.37) (1,539.71)
Other Comprehensive Income ' .

Profit/(Loss) earried to Balance Sheet (440.37) (1,539.71)

Summary of operation during the Current vear ended on 31¢ March 2023

During the financial year under consideration, the company incurred loss of INR. 440.37M. Going
ahead, the directors are taking all steps to improve the performance of the company.

Dividend
No dividend was declared/paid during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
Transfer to Reserves

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023 company incurred losses so have not transferred
any amount to Reserves.

Change in nature of business

There is no change in business of the company during the period under review.
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Share Capital

Authorized Share capital

The authorized share capital of your company as at 315t March 2023 stood at INR 675M divided into
67,500,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

Further, there is no change in the authorized share capital till date.

Issue/paid-up share capital

The issued/paid-up share capital of your company as on 315t March 2023 stood at INR 201.70M
divided into 2,01,69.566 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

Further, there is no change in the issued/paid-up share capital till date.
Debentures
There is no issue/allotment of debentures or other securities during the year

Deposits

Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate company

The particular of fellow subsidiaries is annexed as Annexure ‘A’ to the Board report,.

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The present directors of the company are Mr. Ravi Shankar, Mr. Anuraag Bhatnagar and Mr.
Madhav Sehgal.

Further. as per the provision of section 2(51) and section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, there are
no key managerial personnel in the company.

Meetings of Board of Directors

The Board had met Nine times during the financial year ended 31st March 2023. The date of board
meetings are 08-Apr-22, 31-May-22, 01-Jul-22, 10-Aug-22, 12-Sep-22, 28-Sep-22, 1-Dec-22, 15-Mar-
23 and 30-Mar-23.

Meetings of the Board held during the year, including attendance of each Director at all such
meetings, are mentioned below:

Sr. No. Date of the Meeting| Name of the Directors
Mr. Anuraag Mr. Ravi Shankar Mr. Madhav Sehgal
Bhatnagar
1 08-Apr-22 4 X
2 31-May-22 Y Y
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3 01-July-22 Y Y
4 10-Aug-22 Y ¥
5 12-Sep-22 ¥ 4
6 28-Sep-22 Y ¥ X
7 1-Dec-22 ¥ Y
8 15-Mar-23 ¥ Y
9 30-Mar-23 X Y

Board’s Comment on Auditor’s Report

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Statutory Auditors

M/s BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants have been appointed for five years in the first Annual
General Meeting and thus, are holding office of the statutory auditors of the company from the

conclusion of 1% Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 6 Annual General Meeting.

Internal Financial Control and its adequacy

Internal Financial Control means the policies/procedures adopted by the company for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to the same, the safeguarding of
company’s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information / statements.
The company has adhered to the internal financial control with reference to its financial statements.

Vigil Mechanism

The company has in place a wvigil mechanism that provides adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees/directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also provide for direct
access to the Board of Directors, in exceptional cases, thereby ensuring that the activities of the
company are conducted in a fair and transparent manner.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investment under Section 186 of the Companies Act. 2013

During the financial year under review, the company has not given any loan, guarantee or
investment in terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, your company has given Inter-corporate deposits to it’s group companies in due compliance
of the Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Related Party Transactions
All the related party transactions entered during the financial year were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length pricing basis. The Particulars of such transactions is annexed as

“Annexure B” to the Board Report.

Material Changes Affecting the Financial Position of the company

No material changes affecting financial position of the company occurred after close of financial year
and up to the date of this report.
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Secretarial Audit Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder, the
Board has appointed, M/s Jignesh Makawana, Practicing Company Secretaries, (Membership No:
F9920 and CP No. 13928) to conduct the secretarial audit of the company. The Secretarial Audit
Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2023, is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure
‘C’ to this Report.

Policy on Directors appointment & remuneration:

The provision of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are not applicable on the company.

Declaration by Independent Director:

The provision of Section 149 pertaining to the appointment of Independent Director do not apply on
the company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

(A) Pursuant to the provisions under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the Directors confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed and no material departures have been made from the same:

ii. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
company for that period;

iii. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities:

iv. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

v. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively,

vi. The company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the company.

(B) The details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other
than those which are reportable to the Central Government: None

Conservation of Energy. Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

The details of Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Qutgo are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy:

The steps taken or impact on conservation of | During the year under review company have
energy taken initiative which includes Chiller plants,
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Walk in cold room and deep rooms, variable
frequency drive and Building management
system for conservation of energy.

The steps taken by the company for utilising | The company will explore the options to utilize

alternate sources of energy alternative sources of energy, wherever possible
The capital investment on energy conservation | INR 620 M
equipment

B. Technology Absorption:

The efforts made towards technology absorption NIL
The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or | NIL
import substitution
In case of imported technology — the details of technology imported, year of import, | NIL
whether the technology has been fully absorbed, if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place and the reasons thereof

The expenditure incurred on research and development NIL
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Out Millions
| Earnings g
I Outgo 95.65

Risk Management

The processes and practices of risk management encompass risk identification, classification and
evaluation. The company identifies all strategic, operational and financial riske that the company
faces, by assessing and analyzing the latest trends in risk information available internally and
externally and using the same to plan for risk management.

Particulars of Employees
The list of employees whose details are required pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, if applicable, is available
with company and can be produced on demand.

Significant & materials orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal

No significant or material order / judgment have been passed against / in favour of the company
during the year.

Maintenance of cost records

The company was not required to prepare and maintain cost records as specified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per the provision of section 135(5) the Board of every company referred to in sub-section (1), shall
ensure that the company spends, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net
profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years or where the




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office: The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New Delhi South

Delhi 110023 Tel No. +91 (11) 39331234 Email Id: cs@theleela.com
CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

company has not completed the year of three financial years since its incorporation, during such
immediately preceding financial years in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

The company does not meet the criteria as specified above, therefore, the provisions relating to
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable.

Safe & Conducive Workplace

The company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees.
During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Compliance of Secretarial Standards

The secretarial standards on meetings of Board and shareholders issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India have been duly complied in respect of the meetings of Board and shareholders
held during the year.

Dematerialization

All equity shares and Debentures issued by the company are in demat form as on the date of the
report

Acknowledgement

The directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation and gratitude to the various offices of
Government, Reserve Bank of India, the Registrar of Companies, Bankers and to the Shareholders
for their co-operation in functioning of the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

4. 240w

Name: Ravi Shankar
Designation: Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-Sep-23
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ANNEXURE A
Annexures to Directors’ Report

FORM AOC-1
Statement pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate
companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”:
Subsidiaries- Details of Fellow Subsidiaries are as below

S1No | Name of the Fellow Subsidiary Date of association

1 Schloss Chennai Private Limited 11 September 2019

2 Schloss HMA Private Limited 11 September 2019

3 Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 11 September 2019

4 Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited 11 September 2019

5 Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited 16 October 2019

6 Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited 03 May 2021

7 Schloss Tadoba Private Limited 16 August 2022

8 Moonburg Power Private Limited 29 March 2023

Part “B”: Associates - NIL

The following information shall be furnished:-
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations- NA
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.-NA.

Q\@_@U‘LO"

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
aag Bhatnagar Name: Ravi Shankar

%Name-
Designatior& Director Designation: Director
DIN: 0796703 DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-Sep-23
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‘ANNEXURE B’
FORM NO. AOC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NA
Sl .
No | Particulars Dealls
a Name of the related Parties
b. Nature of relationship
G Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
d. Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
e. value, if any Not Applicable
f. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
g. date(s) of approval by the Board
h. Amount paid as advances, if any:
h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required
under first proviso to section 188
2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
Sl | a b C d e f g
No | Name | Nature of | Nature of | Duration  of | Salient terms of the | Date(s) of | Amount
of relationship | contracts/ the contracts | contracts or | approval by | paid as
Related arrangements/ | /farrangements/ | arrangements or | the Board, | advances,
Party transactions transactions transactions if any: if any
including the value, if
any:
Refer Note No 36 of the Notes to Account of the Financials for the year ended 31.3.3023

All the related party transactions are on arm’s length basis or in ordinary course of business.

of the Board of Directors

39K

Name: Ravi Shankar
Designation: Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28-Sep-23
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Practicing Company Secretary

S-16, Sej Plaza Marve Road, Malad West
Mumbai - 400 064
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E: csjimakwana@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Schloss Bangalore Private
Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Management’s responsibility

The Management along with the Board of Directors are responsible for ensuring that the
Company complies with the provisions of all applicable laws and maintains the required
statutory records and documents in the prescribed manner.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and
maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS”) prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (“ICSI”). These standards require that the auditor complies with
statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating
controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances
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CS Jignesh Makwana

Practicing Company Secretary
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Mumbai - 400 064
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E: csjimakwana@gmail.com

may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in
accordance with the CSAS.

Basis for Opinion

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis

for our opinion.
Opinion

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and provided as scanned
copies in electronic mode and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023
according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there
under;- N.A

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment.

Provisions relating to Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings were not applicable to the Company during the Financial Year;
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CS Jignesh Makwana

Practicing Company Secretary

S-16, Sej Plaza Marve Road, Malad West
Mumbai - 400 064

Tel: 022 4970 4800
E: csjimakwana@gmail.com

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act')

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992- Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

c¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”) - Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period.

(vi) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representation given by the Company
are listed in Annexure - A.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

@) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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During the period under review and subject to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Management, the Company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The compliances by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct and Indirect tax
laws have not been reviewed in this Audit since the same are subject to review by Statutory
Financial Audit.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors as applicable.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, were sent as
per the compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The Board decisions are carried out with the assenting views of the Directors.
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - B and
forms an integral part of this report.

CS Jignesh Makwana
Practicing Company Secretary
Mem No.: F9920

COP: 13928

UDIN: F009920E001082618

Date: September 26, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure - A
List of other applicable laws to the Company:

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;
Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952;
Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1965;
Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923;
Shops and Establishment Act, 1954;
Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

Trade Unions Act, 1926;

10. Income Tax Act, 1961;

11. Profession Tax Act, 1975;

X *® N S OB W Dho=

12. Hotel Insurance Policies and Other Local Laws.
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To,

Annexure - B

The Members,
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

CS Jignesh Makwana

Practicing Company Secretary

S-16, Sej Plaza Marve Road, Malad West
Mumbai - 400 064

Tel: 022 4970 4800
E: csjimakwana@gmail.com

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and

Books of Accounts of the Company.

2. Wherever required, we have obtained Management representation about the
Compliance of the various other laws, rules and regulations and happening of events

etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test-check basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

CS Jignesh Makwana
Practicing Company Secretary
Mem No.: F9920

COP: 13928

UDIN: F009920E001082618

Date: September 26, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing

BSR&Co.LLP Nesco [T Park 4, Nesco Center

Westarn Express Highway
Chartered Accountanis Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 083, India

Telephone: +91 (22) 8257 1000
Fax: +91 (22) 6257 1010

Independent Audrtors Report

To the Members of Schloss Bangalore Private Limlited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schioss Bangalore Private Limited {the "Company”} which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, end notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
acoepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and ite cash
fliows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standarde on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
for the Audit of the Financial Staternents section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountsnts of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Ruies thersunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence ws have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

The Company’s Management and Board of Direciors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and falr view
of the state of affairs, profitloss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards spacified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of edequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operati ely for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the n and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

ar efror.
In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are respansible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concemn and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors eithar
intends to Nquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to de so.

The Board of Direclors is also responsible for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting proc

Regiziorsd Office:
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethar the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or esTor, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error end are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial stataments.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* [|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resufting from esror, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place end the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material unceriainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material unceriainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audi evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, struciure and content of the financial statements, inciuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies in internal control

that we identify during ocur awdit.

We also provide those charged with govemnance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear cn our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Reporf) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Gavemment of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our au
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

b. In our opinion, proper baoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of thase books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

. With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial conlrols with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Ruie 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foraseeable iosses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represanted that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Nots 45 (vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested

() nds)
8) med
co edia

directly or indirectly lend or invest in cther persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

() The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and beliof, as disclosed in
the Note 45 (vil) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, fend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties ("Uttimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on bahalf
of the Uitimate Beneficlaries.

{lii) Based on the audit procedures porformed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nohinghascometoownoﬁceﬂwthascausedusbbeliwematme
representations undor sub-clause (j) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

As provigo to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applic
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independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

C. Wiih respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Saction 187 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other detalls under Section 197(18)
of the Act which are requirad to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248WW-100022

o HShedt

Jaymin Sheth

Partner

Place: Mumbal Membership No.: 114583
Date: 27 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23114583BGZDAQB556

& Co

Page 4 of 11



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financlal Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to In paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Praperty, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of infangible assets.

() (b)  According fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a reguiar programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which ali property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, aii property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year based on listing as on 31 March 2022. In our opinion, thie periodicity of
physical vertfication Is reasonabie having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{0  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the ieases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:

Description Gross Held in the Whather Period held- Reason
of property carrying name of promoter, indicate for not
value director or range, being
(INR in their reiative where held in
million} oremployee appropriate the
neme of
the
Compan
y. Also
indicats
ifin
dispute
SOMW(1.25 059 M/s. Sarfjan No 07 January Title
MW of 4 Nos) Realiitles 2021 deeds
Wind Ml at Limited ara in the
Kudrekonda process
State Forest, of being
Davangere transferre
District, d in the
Kamnataka name of
the
Company

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assats or both during the year.

(&  According to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for hoiding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Properly

Act, 1988 and rules made thereun
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

(i) {a)

(b)

(iii)

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

{e)

Tha inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. (n our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriete. No discrepancies were noticed on verification batween the
physical stocks and the book racords that were more than 10% In the aggregate of each class
of inventory

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Compeny has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. fn our opinion, the quarierly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies, firms,
limited lability partnership or any any cther parties. The Company has not provided guarantee
or securily or has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to compenies, firms, limited
limbility pertnership or any other parties during the year. The company bas granted unsecured
loans 1o employees during the year in respect of which the requisite information is as below.

Based on the audit procedures camied on by us and as per the information and explanations
given o us the Company has provided ioans t0 employees as baiow:

Particulars Loans
{INR in millions)

Aggregate amount during the year
Loans {0 ampioyees 1.76

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Loans fo employees 1.72

Accarding 1o the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedurss
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of ioans to employees
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudiciai to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the schedule of repayment of loans given to employses (which
as per the Company policy is interast free) is stipulated. The payment of principal has been
regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of icans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans 1o any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinafion
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of exigling loans given
1o same parties.

According to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Compeny has not granted any loans either repeyeble on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayme
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

)

)

(vi)

(v ){a)

(b}

(vii)

According to the information and explanation given to ue and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans
or provided guarantes or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Section 185 and 186
of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{i) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order i5 not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have llabllity in respect of Service tax, Duly of excise, Sales tax and
Value addad tax during the yesr sinca effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been

subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the Compeny did not have any dues on Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanetions given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recorda of the Compeny, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Geods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payabls.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Service Tax and Value added tax or Cass or
other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount (INR Period to Forum where Remarks

statute dues in million) which the dispute is ,ifany
amount pending
relates
Finance Act, Service Tax 40.38 Aprdl 2007 - Customs
1994 Decamber Excise and
2012 Service Tax
Appellete
Tribunal
Kamataka Value Added 1.28 2015-16 Joint
Value Added Tax Commissione
Tax Act, 2003 r of
Commercial
Taxes
(Appeais)

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company bas not surrendered or disclosed any fransactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1981 as income during the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Continued)

() (a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

() ()

(b)

() ()

(b)

©
(xil)

(i)

(xW) (a}

®

)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of inderest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our sxamination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our oplnion and dccording to the information and explenations given to us by the
management, tarm loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
appiicable.

The Company does not hoid any investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures {as
defined under the Act) during the ysar ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
appiicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partty converiible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
300)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Saction 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditore in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As reprasented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower compiaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, ciause 3{xi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of tha Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explenations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinlon,
the Company has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the intsmal audit reports of the Company issued tiii date for the pericd
under audit.

In cur opinlon and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company has
not entared into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its direcl%s
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are nat applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to he registered under Section 45-1A of the Regerve Bank of india
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){a) of the Order Is nat applicable.

()  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

()  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(vi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  The Company is nat part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Invesiment Companies
{(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
I(cvi)(d) are nat applicable.

{ovll) The Company has not incurred cash loesas in the current year. Howsver cash lossess incurred
in the immediately preceding financlai year was of Rs. 1,031.43 million.

(xvii)  There hes heen no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{xvill) of the Order is not applicable.

{xbx) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financiai assets and payment of financial iiabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our atiention, which causes
us to belleve that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabiiities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they falt due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further stata that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all Kabilities faling due within a period of one year from the
balance shest date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(0g The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 30o(a) and 30 (b) of the Order are net applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

JH.shet

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 27 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23114583BGZDAQSBS56
R&
»
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BS R&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referved to in paragraph 2(A)f) under ‘Report on Other Legali and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial etatemants of Schloss Bangalore
Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate Intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financla) Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountents of India (the “Guidance Note”).

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and malnteining
internal financial centrols based on the internal financial controls with refarence to financial statements
criteria established by the Company consldering the essaniial components of internal cantro! stated in the
Guidance Note. These reaponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, ihe prevention
and detaction of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responeibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intemnal financial controls with reference to
financial statemands based on our audit. We cenducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nots
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of intenal financial controis with reference to financial stetements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal tinancial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statemente, assessing the risk that a matesial
weakness gxists, and testing and evaluating the design and oporating effectiveness of intemal condrol
based on the assessed risk. The procedures salected depend on the auditor's judgement, ncluding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ls sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's intemnal financlal controls with reference to financial statements.

A company's internal financial controls with referance to financial statements Is a process designed to
assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financlal statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Continued)

statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generelly accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with refarence to financial sta include those policies and
procodtm that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairty

the transactions and dispasitions of the assets of the company; (2) provide msonable assurance
thal transactions are recorded as necesaary to permit praparation of financial statements i accardance
rece

nage
mely
orflaposmon of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent imitations of intemal financiai controls with reference to financlal statements,

one iasta
and f the
tofi risk

internai financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurss may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/wW-100022

Jaymin Sheth

Pariner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 27 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23114583BGZDAQS556
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Skeet a5 at 31 March 2023

Particulars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Sharcholers' fands
Share capital
Reserves and surplug

Nen-current labilities
Long-term borrowings
Otber long-ten lisbilities
Long-tern provisions

Cuwrrent Habilitfes

Short-term bomowings

Trade payables

-Dusofmicmemuwisesaudmllmwiw
~Dmdcﬁmmmﬂkm&mmﬁuwmﬂmmﬂm
Other current labilities

Short-tenm peovisions

Total
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property.phnndqdpmmtwhmsibbnm
Property, Plant and Equipasent

Intaegibles agsets

Capital work-in-progress

Deferred tax assets (net)

Investments

Long-term loens and edvences

Other non-clirrent assers

Current assels

Invenories

Trade receivables

Cash and bank balsnees
Short-tettn Joans and advances
Other current assets

Total

Siguificant accounting pelictes

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the finsncial statements.

As par our report of even dats atisched

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants h
Firm Regiziration No: 101248WrW-100022

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
Membership Number: 1 14583

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 Sepiember 20123

in
As at As 1t
NO® ) March 2023 31 March 2022
3 2070 201.70
4
(218367 (1,74331)
-1 14602.87 14,599.53
§ 50549 Ky 7]
7 295 N
15,131.31 1495502
3 1,507.42 141108
9
249 2168
143.29 84.08
10 Ny 122,78
i 423 .39
199292 1,739.90
164
12 12,778.97 12,703.57
3 878.46 1,164.13
14 63.0 298
15
16 ALl L AL
17 100.75 22.32
18
230217 14,218.26
19 .10 5847
20 84.6% 6114
21 53790 51678
22 $6.12 .5
23 70.68 30.7¢
$37.49 733.38
2
146
For sad on behalf of the board of directers of
Schloss Private Limited
N 9PTCI47492 Ly
Ravi Shanksr Upadhyay
Direcror Conipany Secratary
DIN: DIN; 07967039 Memnbership Namber: A23622
Place: Mumbal Place; Murnbai Place: Mumbay
Date: 27 September Daie: 27 September 2023 Date: 27 September 2023



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Seatement of profit and Jezs for the yaar ended 31 Mareh 2023

Particulars

Revenue from opesalions
Odhier imcome
Total lacome

Expesses
Consumption of food and beverngss
Employee benefits expente

Finance costy

Depreciation and amonisstion expense

Other éxpeases
Tetal expenses

Loss befers tax

Taz eipense
- Current tax

- Defbtred tax chorge / (credil)

Loss after isx

Esraiag per equity share (I rupees)

Batic eamings per share (Pace value Rs.10 each)

Diluted carmings pes share (Face value R3.10 each)
Siguifican t aceountiag pelicies

The notes seferred to abave form an integral part of the financial starments.

Ag per our report of even date strached

For BSR&Co LLP
Chartered Acoommiants

Firm Registration No; 101 245W/W-100022

Jaymin Sheth
Partnar

Membership Number: 114583

Place: Mumbal
Dave: 27 Seplember 2023

For and o behatf of the board of dirseters of
Schioss Private Limited

CIN:

Bhetadgar
DN

Place: Munebai
Date: 27 September 2023

7 |

—

For the year eaded 31
March 2023

38127

41657
142857

94501

440N

21.89)
213%

Director
DIN: 07967038

Place; Munbai

s weitifonms)
For the year ended 31
March 2022

1,W598

117737

110.2»

(LS39.71)

30T

(76.53)

Assad Upadhysy
Compeny Secretary
Membarship Number: A23622

M- “lm'

Date: 27 September 2023 Date: 27 September 2023



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash (low statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars
Cash flows Trem sparating sciivities

Loss before thx for the pear
Adjusimens for:

Depreciarion and amortisation

Finance costs

Property. plent and equipment written off

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (rel)
Reny equalisation resetve

Lease equaligation income

Provision no longer riquired writien back
Compensated sbaences writien back

Intenest ncome

Operating cask flows before worldag capital changes

Working eapital mevements:
Tncrease in loans and advances
Increase in inveniories
[ncrease in irade receivables
Lacrease in other assets
Lacrease in trade payables
Incrass¢ in other Nabilities
Desrepse in provisions

Cash generated from: operations
Income taxes paid, net

Net cash flows gemerated Trim eperating activithes (A)

Cash flows from Invesiing octivities

Paynents for property. plant and equipments inchuding capitel work in progress
Proceeds Grom sale of propesty, plant and equipment

Investvent in fixed deposits

Interes] received

Purchase of non-cument invesnents

Mat cash Tlows uzed in Tnvesting aetivities (B)

Cash flows from Enancing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-larm borrow ings

Repayment of short-tem bomrowings

Froveeds from issusance of compubsory conventibl: debentures
Proceeds from Eseuance of equity shares including securities prémbum
Loams 4nd advances taken. nel

Finance costs paid (Refer note SA(D)

Net cash Bows geaerated from financing activities (C)

Net (decrease)incrense In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash squivalents as 4t beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the year

Componeats of cash amd cask equivalents
Cath on hand
Balance with banks
-in curvent Ascount
«in fixed deposit actount with original matarity of less than 3 months
Total cash and cazh equivalents (Refer nale 21)

For the year ended 31
March 2023

142856

(2.24}
26.13

(24,76}
145586

16.56}
(30.04)
(1755}
19.56)

6242

753

135

146045

(31920

LA k]
177

138.74)

400

(342)

01795

(1.143.25)

(9943)
503.78
498

3

(Rupees in mittions}

For the year ended 31
March 2032

(1,53%.7)

#6831
122855

“z5
i

0.3
(7.3%)
185.5¢

G179
@D
(41.65)
(21.46)
LD
3™
(7.20
3349

1.4

(1,400.58)
415
(65.45)
760
(L1 4
{LAS4N)

2,054.07
(311.46)

.64
L1194
1.92%.16

49018

11.68

£03.78

.74

14304

The cash IlowMﬂmmmhmmewﬁh‘hlimmmd“umwtmmﬂgwa on "Cash Flowr Statemments™ refemed 1o in

The notes referred o sbove fosmn an ivegral part of the financial staiements
Ag per our report of even date atached

For BSR & Ce. LLP
Charvered Accowtanrs
Firm Registration Mo: 101248WAV-100022

3«”% o

Jaywiin Shefh
Farier o
Membership Muinber: 1T

Plece: Mumbal
Datc: 27 Sepleciber 2023

For oad of behsll of the beard of directors of

Schboss Private Limited
CIN: SPTCI47492
DN

Place: Mumbsi

De: 27 Seprember

Divecior
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Dale: 27 September 2023

Ll
~f

Upadhyay
Compaly Secreny
Membership Number: A23622

Place: Munibai
Date: 27 Seprember 2023



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 (Continued)

1 Company information

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (“the Company™) an Indian subsidiary of Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited was
incorporated on 20 March 2019 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by
acquiring Bangalore hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name
of "THE LEELA".

2 Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied eonsistently to the periods presented in these financial statements.

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in compliance with the requirements under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Aet”), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standard Amendment Rules, 2(16) and other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") in India, under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting. The
financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees in millions.

2.2 Going Concern

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs.440.37 millions during the year ended 31 March 2023, has accumulated losses of Rs.4077.31 millions
and negative net worth of Rs.2183.67 miliions at 31 March 2023 and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by Rs.1154.53 millions.

This year the Company has seen quite an improvement in business over the previous year, as this year the Company has fully recovered from
the impact of COVID-15.

Based on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its obligations.

The Company has assessed its capital and financial resources, profitability and overall liguidity position. In developing the assumptions and
estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions, the Company as at the date of approval of these financial statements
has used intemal and external sourees of information and based on curtent estimates, expects to recover the camrying amounts of assets.

In view of the above, the Company believes that it wili be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in
near future and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

2.3  Use of estimates

The preparation of financiai statements in conformity with GAAP in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financiai
statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the
relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of financial statements which in management's opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.4 Current/ Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-cutrent.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A inability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
Current liabilities meiude current portion of non-current liabilities.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as [2 months for the purpose of current - non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.5 Forcign exchange translation

Initial recognition
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaetion or that approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monuh{y itemns denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms
of hlslorical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-rhonetary items
which aréicamed at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when u;e N ¢alues were determined. /

Excha fh dilfference AN
/Ewha e differences arising on the settlement or on reporiing of monetary items of Company at rates different from those a}-ish?chlh::y were-'

mrt!-ally recognized are recorded as incotne or expense in the year in which they arise.



SCHLOSS BANG ALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued}

2.6

2.7

18

29

2,10

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profic / (loss) before tax for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises of cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Earnings per share

The basic and dilutive eamings per ¢quity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. The number of shares used in
computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic ¢arnings per share and aiso the
weighted average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, unless the results
would be anti-dilutive.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the service, provided pervasive evidence of an arrangement exists, tariff / rates are fixed or are
determinable and collectability is reasonably certain. Revenue comprises sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services relating to hotel
operations, including management and operating fees, Rebates and discounts granted to customers are reduced from revenve.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis faking into aecount amount outstanding and interest rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive payment is established by the reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (tangible assets) are carried as cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and
equipment upto the date the asset 1s ready for its intended use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance
sheet date.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule [l to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of buildings, plant and machinery and furniture and fixtures, in whose case the life
of the assets had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into the account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of
the asset, aspects such as modifications effected since acquisition, the present condition of the existing assets and level of maintenance.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.¢. from the date on which assets is ready for use. Depreciation on sale of asset is provided up to
the date of sale of the asset.

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the property. plant and equipment are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life as per Schedule II (in years) |Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in years)
Buildings 60 years 60 years

Plant and machinery 15 years 10 years to 15 years

Plant and machinery - Windmill 25 years 25 years

Furniture and fixtures 8 years 8 years

Office equipments 5 years Not Applicable

Computers 3 years Not Applicable

Data processing units 6 years Not Applicable

Vehicles 6 years Not Applicable

In respect of leasehold land acquired, any consideration paid is amortised from the date the land is put to use for commercial operations, over

—the balance period of the lease.

A pr()i)‘eqy, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expeeted from its use or disposal. Gains

or losses T_t_pﬂ‘l disposal / retirement of an tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.




SCHLOSS BANG ALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

2.11

212

2,13

2.14

ETE

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on

a straight-line basis over the period in which economic benefits will be derived from their use. The amortisation perod and the amortisation
method arc reviewed atleast each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates,
the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets ar¢ as follows;

Category of assets Useful life (in years)

Computer software 6 years
Right to use (Car park space) 60 years

Goodwill 5 years

-

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses
from disposal / retirement of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proeeeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Impairment of assets

In accordance with AS 28 on '[Impairment of assets', the Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing the value in usc, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value based on appropriate diseount factor. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.
The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment Joss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is refiected af the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income-tax law) and deferred
tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

Current tax
Provision for current tax is recognized based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for aliowances and exemptions in
accordance with the tax laws applicable to the Company.

Deferred tax
Deferrad tax is recognized in respect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income i.e. differences that originate in one

period and are capable of reversal in the subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the comresponding deferred tax liabilities or
assets are recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred fax
assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable cerfainty that the assets can be realized in future; however, where there is
unabsotbed depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported
by convincing evidence that the sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally

enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax jiabilities
relate to taxes on income levied by the same govemning taxation laws.

Deferred tax assefs are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and wriiten down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually
certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one ycar from the date, on which such investments are
made, are classified as current investtnents. All other investments are classified as long term investments. Current investments are carried at
cost ot fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognise a
decline, other than temporary, it the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

'Emg‘lpycc benefits

oY
Shorf-tetm benefits
All employee benefits payable whelly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These
benefi !s‘;?%lude salary, wages and bonus, short rerm compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted
amounl,g(’ short-term employee benefits (including compensated absences) expected to be paid in exchange for tile services rendered by
employr?s’ 15 recognized as an expense during the period of rendering of service by the employee. T = |




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financia) statements for the Year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)
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Employee henefits (Continued)

Long term employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contribution to providen: fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are

Defined benefit plans
(Post-employment benefit)

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valyation by an independent actuary using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to bujld up the final obligation,

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash fiows, The discount rates used for determining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market vields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the
calculation results in a benefit {o the Company, the Tecognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service costs and the bresent value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan, Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized immediately in the statentent of profit and Jogs,

Other fong-tern employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised acerued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or received
cash compensation on termination of employment. The Company records obligation for compensated absences m the period in which the

Investments
Investments which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date on whick such investments are made

are classified as current investments. Alf other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the Jease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vests with the lessor, are recognised
as operating leases,

Finance leases, which effectively transfer 1o the Company substantially all the rigks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are
capitalised at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments,
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management
fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are caprtalised,

Provision fr‘a respect of logs contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, eic, are recognised l\;bt;ﬂ |t,t_s_-nrob$blc that
R /1 RNGEDY

P
a liabiljty hgs been incurred, and the amount ean be estimated reliably, /
W | o




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIV ATE LIMITED
Notes ¢o the financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2023 (Continued)

2.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities {Continued)
Contingencics:
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised when it is probable that

a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably.
A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,

require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant
provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outfiow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed eontinuously and if
it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the
change occurs.

2.20 Segment Reporting
The Company has considered business segments as the primary segments for disclosure on the basis that the risk and retums of the Company

is primarily determined by the nature of services.

Revenues and expenses have been identified to the segment based on their relationship to the business activity of the segment.
Income/Expenses relating to the enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as unaliocated
corporate income/expenses. Inter-segment transfers are at prices which are generally market led.




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Lo the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 {Continued)

3 Share capital (Rupees in milliony)

As at As at
Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 3) March 2022
Authorised
67.500,000 (Previous year: 67.500.000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 675.00 §75.00
675.00 675.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
20,169,566 (Previous year: 20,169.566) equity shares of Rs, 10 each, fully paid up 201.70 200,70
201.70 201.70
) Reconcifiation of number of shares and at the beginni g and at the end of the reporting peripd

(Rupees in millions)

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars

No. of shares Amount|  Ng, of shares Amount
Al the beginning of the year 2,01,69,566 201.70 1,93,73,216 193.73
Shares issued during the year - - 71.96,350 7.9%
Atthe end of the year 2,01,69,566 201.70 2,01,69,566 101,70

b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached ¢o equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly., all equity shares rank equally with regard 1o dividends ang share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity

shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time io time. The voling rights of an equity shareholder on a poll inot show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the
paid-up equity capital of the Company.

On winding up of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled io recejve the residual assets of the Company.
¢} Shares held by hofding company / aMimate bolding Lompany

(Rupees in mitlions)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amuount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Py, Limited, holding company 2,01,69,565 201.70 2,01,69,565 201.70
BSREP 111 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited. ultitnate holding company i .00 1 400
2,01,69,566 201.70 2,01,69,566 IOI.l]_

]

d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Particolars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
? No, of shares % of Holding| No, of shares % of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 19 each fully paid-up
Project Ballet Banpalore Holdings {DIFC) Private Limited 2,01,69.565 99,997, 2,01,69,565 99.909;
2,01,69,565 99.99%, 2,01,69,565 99.99%,
€} Company has nof issued any bonus shares, shares for consideration other than cash and neither bougiit back any shares from the date of incorporation
f) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up As at 31 March 2023 As 2t 31 March 2022 Change in % of
Promoters No. of shares %o of Holding| No. of shaves % of Holding| Rolding
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings {DIFC) Private Limnited 2.01,69,565 99.99% 2.01,69,565 99.99% 99.09%
BEREP I Indi Ballet Holdings {DIFC) Limited | (.00% | 0.00% 0.00%
2,01,69,566 99.99%, 2,01,69,566 99.994;, 99.99%,
I _




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {Continued)
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(@}

b

{c}
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Reserves and sorplus

(Rupees in milliony)

- As at Asat
Particufars 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Securities premium secount:

Al the commencement of the year 1.691.94 162027

Add: Premium on shares issued during the vear - 71.67

At the end of the year 1.691.94 1.691.94
Retalned earnings:

At the commencement of the year 13,636.94) {2,097.24)

Add: Loss for the vear (440.37) (1.539.71)

At the end of the year (4.077.31) (3,636.94)

Total (2.385.37) (1,945.01 )

Long-term horrowings
(Rupees in milfions)
As at As at
Particutars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured:
Term loans:
- From banks
Rupee tean Joan {Refer note A angd C) 11,3%020 11.169.54
Less : Amount disclosed under shor term borrowings !Refer noge Afd) below! (290.07) (54.20)
11.100,13 1L115.34
Working capitai tenn Joan ({Refer note B) 1,999 99 2,000,00
Less : Awnount disclosed under short fenn borrowings {Refer note Bic) below] - (18.56)
1,999.99 1.981.44
Unsecured;
10.50% unsecnred compulsorily convertible debentures (Refar hote [n)] 1,502.75 1.502.75
Long-term inaturflies of finance lease abligation (Refer note E) - -
1,502.75 150175
Tofal 14.602.87 14.599.53

Notes:

Terma loan from Bank 1

The lender has granted a term foan facility under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 to the Company and three co-borrowers re. Schloss Chennai Private
Lumited, Schloss Chanakyva Private Limited, Schioss Udaipur Private Limited, for a total amounting to Rs. 27,500.00 millions for the purpose of acquisition (RS, 25,500 millions) and
refurbishment of the hotel propenty acquired (Rs. 2,000 millions) fully fungible amongst cach of the three c0- borrowers and the C pany’s hotel propenty in Bangalore. The door 1o
door tenure of the loan is 15 years including moratorium of one year. The loan is repayable in 56 Quarterly structured installments beginning 31 December 2020, The loan carries
interest rate linked to lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR"), subject to annual reset, Plus spread ranging from 0.80% o 1.60% based on the external
credit rating, The Company has available facility of Rs. 960 millions (Previous Year: Rs: 960 millions) and rate of interest as on 31 March 2023 is §.70 % p.a. (Previous year 7.80 %
pal

With the graduval drawdown of capex in the past (hree Yyears the individua? limits set for Schioss Chennai Private Limited and Schloss Udaipur Private Limited pot exhausted ang an

application to the tender was made for revision in the individual limits. However, due to the system limitation ai the end of the iender, the same cannol be revised and accordingly a

cross ulilisation of capex 1imil was done during the vear, The Company has cross charged the interest expense on such ulilisation,

Primary securlty:
The total tenm loan under the said agreement is secyred against assels of the C ompany, other co-borrawers and obligators i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and
Resorts Limited under the ¢ Facility Ag nt. interalia, including:

i Exclusive charge on the to1al assets (ncluding morgage of property and / or mongage of leasehold tights in case of leasehold Pproperty; i any) (present & future).
it. Exclusive charge on brand *Leela” pertaining 1o Hotels, other intangibles, Goodwill, Intellectual Praperty (1P}, uncailed capital (present and fumre);

iil. Exclusive charge on all bank accounts including but not limited to Escrow account {present & future),

iv. First charge on the total current assets (present and future).

v, Hypothecation of cash flows

Long-term berrowings (Contlnued)
Nates (Continned):

Term loan from Bank (Continued)

Corporate guarantee:
) of Schloss HMa Private Limited, a feflow subsidiary.
if) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Liniled, a fellow subsidiary.

Other security:

i} Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Praject Ballet Bangalore Haldings (DIFC) Pvi, Limited, Holding company, in favour of securily trusiee for the benefit of lenders
for the enire tenn loan expusure,

i) A guaraniee of BSREP 111 Indjy Ballet Pre. Limited, uliimate Holding company, simated at Sj pore upio an of Rs. 3,000 millions, enforcenble at Singapare towards
meeting the shortfall in deb service obligations till 30 March 2022,

iti) A puarantee of BSREP 111 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited.. ultimate Holding coinpany, simated at Dubai upto an amount of Bs, 3,000 millions, enforceable a1 Dubaj towards
meeting the shortfall in debt service obligations from 31 March 2022,

) Mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Lecla Palaces and Resors Limited.

Currenl ingturities of long-term homrowings are classified 2s short-tenin borrowings.

Modification in facility terms:
request of the manapeinent has waived the requirement of testing of financiaf covenants Iill ihe end of FY 2022.23 with testing to be performed on the audiled balance

Company his nvailu{i

-;f inaratorinm facility for inierest on tean ioan for the period March,
02 millions | Previpus year 422.62 inillions},
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Long-term borrowings {Continued)

Nofes (Continued):

The lender has granted a Working capitzl tern Loan (WCTL) Facility under Guaranteed Exnergency Credit Line 3.0 (GECL 1.0} facility of Rs. 2000 millions {Previous Year: 2000
millions} on 24 Decemher, 2021 to the Company to augement nel working capital, requi | Habilities, The door 16 door tenure of the loan is 6 years including
moratoriwin of principal of avo years. The loan is repayable in 4% quarterly stuciured instalbnents heginning fanuary 2024. The loan carries inierest rate linked to Jender's six months
marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLRE"), plus 1%, subject to annual reset

13 1meet op

Primary security:
Second charpe on securities mentioned in A.].(a) above.

Other secority:

1) Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, Holding company, in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders
for the entire (erm loan exposurs.

ii) Extension of morigage on ihe land siiuated at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited,

Current maturities of long-tenn bormowings are classified as shor term borrowings.

Termloan 11

The lender had availed a tenn loan facility under Lease Rental Discounting (LRTY) facility under the Master Facility Agresment dated 17 March 2021 1o the Company, amounting 1e Rs.
1,400.00 millions for the purpose of acquisition of the Galleria office in Bangalore. The door to door tenure of ihe loan was 12 year including moratorivin of one year. The loan was
repayabie in 132 monthly March 2022. The loan carried interest rate linked 10 Criginal Lenders® Lenders Benclunark Rate with negalive Speead of
130 bps per annwm. The rate during the year was 7.75% (Previous year 7.95%),

During the year, the said facility was rv:ﬁna.nced from SBI for amount of Rs 1,100 willions. The door to doot tenure of the loan s 15 years from the dale of first disbursement. The
loan's repayable tenure is [80 hily str 1L beginning D her 2021, The loan carries imerest caie linked 1o lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending
Tate ("MCLE"), subject 10 inonthly and annual resel, phus spread of 0.75%. The rate of inlerest as on March 21, 2023 is 9.15% p.a.(Previous year 7.75%)

a0 . h

Prinary Security:
Exclusive first charge on bypothecalion of existing and future rent receivahles inchiding lease remalz, parking rental, inaintenance receivables and any other receivables from existing

lenants of the commercial building named "Galleria™ from 151 floor to 7th floor, located a1 Sy. no. 34, 35, 96, HAL Stage - II, Old airport road, Kodihaill village, Varthor Hobli, now part
of municipal no. 234, FID no, 7d-49-2344, siluated at Kodiballi iain road, 6th cross, Bangalore admeasuring 15,203.9% sq. /.

Collateral Security:
{a) Exclusive first charge on the commercial buikling named "Galleria™ from 1st floor to Tth floor, located at Sy, no. 94, 95, 96, HAL Stage - 11, 0Id airpont road, Kodihalli village,

Varthur Hobli, now part of municipal no, 23/4, P1ID no. 74-49-23/, sitnated at Kodthalli main road, 6th orcss, Bangalore admeasuring 1520398 sq. fi. along with underlying land
admeasuring 24,404 sq. mirs.

(h) Assigrument (by way of security interest) the right 1o use 305 car parking space.

{c} Exclusive charpe as Lien on 3 months DSRA

{d) Exclusive charge on Escrow account

Current malurities of long-lern borrowings are classified as short tenn bomowings.

10.50% ed

ily convertible deb

p

Converslon terms:

At the end of the tenure (15 years), each Compulsorily Convertihle Debentures {"CCD") of face value of Rz 100 each wili be converted into | equity share of face value of Rs 10 #ach.
CCD can he converted during the lenure of CCDr at the option of the parties i.e. CCD holders and the Company. Provided that the CCDs shall automatically siand converted into equity
shares upon:

{a} Commencaent of the corporate insolvency resolution process of ihe Company or, any of the co-borrowers under the Coomnon Facility Agr
executed with the lender; or

(b} Conversion of loan into equity of the Company or any or all of the co-borrowers under the C Facility Agl
Cormnon Facility Agreement who have provided the luans or who may have acceded 1o the financing documents.
Restriclion on payment of interest on CCDs:

As per terms of the Common Facility Agreement referred at clause 5(A) above, inlerest on the OCDs shall be accrued but cannot he paid hy the Company until all the obligations under
C Facility Ag are completed or seized.

{ dated 30 Sepiember 2019

unless otherwise instrucled by the lender as per the

Long-ternt maturities of finance lease obligation
Finance lease obligalion is on account of Plant and Machinery (Chiller) taken on finance lease for 2 period of 3 years which ended in Augusi 2022, Repayinenis zre done by equaled
imonthly installments over 36 months.,

Other long-term liabilities
(Rupees in milliony)

. As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade / security deposits 78,085 T1.35
Renl qualisation reserve 138,62 11240
Interest accrued bul not due CCD (Refar note SB(b) and 28) 289.82 138.07

505.49 317.82
Long-term provisions
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Provislon for employee benefits:

- Compensated absences 3.81 3.02
- Gratuity (Refer note 37) 19.14 24.68
22.9% 7T
Short-term borrowings
Asal Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
\\'arlun;. L“I'plml in'\r}(#cfcr note A) ; 11736 120,38
Unsectited '\
i Inier cOrporale deposit !}'nm related party (Refer Note B) and (Refer nols 36) 1.099.9% 1,217.94
Current maturities of Iq?b -term borrowings {Refer note 5A(d) and 5B(e)) 259007 72.76
fiozs g 150742 1.411.08




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Naotes to the Nnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

8 Short-term borrowings (Continued)
Notes:
(A) Working capital lean

The ender has granted a working capital facility as per Agreememt dated 11 August 2020 10 the Company and three co-borrowers i.e. Schlogs Chennai Privale Limited, Schloss
Chanakya Privale Limited, Schloss Udatpur Private Limited, for a total amomting to Rs 500.00 millions (Previous Year 500.00 millions) 10 mee1 the working capital requirement and
iit is repayable on demand The loan carries interest rate linked 10 lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate (“MCLR™, subject to monthly resel The rate of interesl as
on 31 March 2023 is 925 % p.a. (Previous year 7.95 % p.a).

{a) Primary secority:
Exclusive first charge on 1he entire current assets (Present and Future) of the Borrower and Schloss HMA Private Limiled {hote] management entity)

{b) Collateral seturity:
(i} Extension of exclusive charge on the entics fixed asseis (including mortgage of property and/or mongage of lease hold ghts in case of lease hold property, if any) of the borrower

(i) Extension of exclusive charge on all cash flows of the bomrower and Schloss HMA Private Limited (hotel management entity), related 10 project (including but not liniled to
ESCROW account and Debt Service Reserve Accounts) openedio be opened with kende
(i) Extansion of morgage on the land situated a1 Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resons Limited,
(iv} Extension of exclusive charge on bramd Leela, other intangibles, goodwill, IP relating to the 4 5PVs owned by Sehloss HMA Private Linited,
(v) Extension of pledge of 30% shares of (i} Schloss Chanakya Private Limited held by BSREP 11l India Ballet I Pie. Lid (i) Schloss Udaipur Privale Liniled held hy Project Ballet
Udaipur Holdings {DIFC) Pvt Limited (iii) Schloss Bangalore Private Limiled held by Project Baller Bangalore Heoldings (DIFC) Pyt Limniled (iv) Schloss Chennai Private Limited
Project Ballet Chennai HoMings {DIFC) Py, Limited, in favour of the lender for the entire exposure (TLHWC).

(¢} Corporate guarantee:
i) of Schloss HMA Private Limiled, a fellow subsidiary.
i) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Linited, a fellow subsidiary.
iii) A guaraniee of BSREP IlI India Balk1 Pie, Limited, uhimate Holding company, situated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs. 3,000 millions, enforceable at Singapore towards
meeting the shortfzll in debt service obligations Lill 50 March 2022,
iv) BSREP L1l Indig Ballet Holdings (DIFC} Limited (Ultiinate Holding Company) to the exteat of Rs, 3,000.00 millions to meel any shortfall in debt servicing obligation of the
Borrower) shall be extended to the proposed loan from 31 March 2022,

{d) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets i.¢. stock stalement, EFRs ele filed by the Comnpany with banks or financial instilulions are in agreement with the books of

(D} Lnter corporate deposit (1CD) from related party
[nter corpocate deposit has heen laken from Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, $chloss Chennai Private Limited and Schloss Chanakya Private Limited. The ICD carries interest rate of
12.5 % p a and same arc repayable on deinand During the year, an amounl of Rs 117.9%/- an towards [CD taken from Schloss Chanakya Privale Limiled have been repaid

9  Trade payables
fRupees in miilions)

Asat As at
Partleulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note helow) 2439 21408
- Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than miceo enlerprises and small emerprises
- Related parties (Refer note 36) 56.87 1199
- Others 8633 7200
167.59 105.16
Maote:
Dwes of micre enterprises and small enterprises
As at As af
gmounl due 1o suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at 2430 21.08
end
due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and resnaining unpaid as at year 4nd 000 0.00
amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Acl, bevond the appointed day 056 1.02
the year
paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, 10 suppllers registered under the -
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Acl, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, -
the appointed day during the year
due and payable ds suppliers regi d imder MSMED Act, for payments already 000 0.01
due and for earlier

The management has identified enterprises which have provided poods and services 10 the Coimpany and which qualify under the definition of micro and sinall enterprises as defined
under MSMED Acl



SCHLOSS BANG ALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

9 Trade payahles (Continued)
As at 31-03-2023

Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Partculars Accrued 2-3 More than 3 Total
Less than I year 1-2years
expenses years years
(i} MSME - 24.3% - - - 24.39
(ii) Others 50,70 92.50 - - - 143.20

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
{(iv) Disputed dues - Others - =
Total 50.70 116.8% - - - 167.59

As at 31-03-2022

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Accrued 2-3 More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year  1-2 years
expenscs years vears
(i) MSME - 21.08 - - - 21.08
(ii) Others 10.46 73.41 0.20 - - 84.07

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME e - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - -
Total 10.46 94.49 0.20 - - 105.15




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

10 Other current Liabill ties

1t

Rupees In mitlions)

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

To related parties (Refer Mote 36}
Imierest acerued and due on inter corporate deposit
Setilement in relation with business acquisition
Management fees payable
Other than related partles
Cwrent maturities of finance lease ohligation
[nterest accrued bul not due on borrowings
Advance from customers
Emnployee dues payable
Statulory dues payable
- Tax deducted al source and equalisation levy
- Goods and service (ax
- Provident fund
- Profession tax
- Emplovees state insurance
Trade / security deposits
Capilal creditors

Short-lerm provisions

124.43 1.23
039 1.97

. 3832
104.19 5136
1548 18.73
2952 26,76
.78 L.90
o1 0.06
0.1 0.10
6.35 19.27
29.35 1.08
31173 22378

{Rupees in millions)

As at As at

e 31March2023 31 Mareh 2022

Provision for employee benefits:

- Compensated absences 043 .31

- Gratoity (Refer note 37) .45 0.58
4.28 0.89
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {Continued)}

15 Deferred tax assefs (pei)

(Rupees im milfions

Partleulars asat Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The components of deferred tax balances are as follows:
{A) Deferved tax assets
Arising on acconst of timing differences in
Frovisiam for employee benefits = -
Disallowance w's 43B of the lncome-ax Act, 1961 19610 11145
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss (Refer noie balow) 174.33 188.0%
370.93 299.54
(B} Deferred tax liability
Avising on gecouni of iiming differences in:
Provision for employee benefils T A6 87
Excess of depreciation f amortisation on property, plant and equipment under incoine 1ax 36347 2195.67
laws over depreciation / amortisation provided in the books
370.93 299.54

Deferred tax assets (net} - {A)p{B} = =

Note
Dreferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent of deferred tax Liabilities, as this amount is considered o he vinually certain of realization. The remaining deferred tax assets of Rs.
733.89 nullions on account of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses are not recognised, as they are not considered 1o be vinually certain of realization

16 Mon-turrent investments
(Rupees in millfons)

g As at As at
ke 31 March 202331 Mareh 2022
Other investments (vatued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Envestment in equity nstroments (unquoted)
12,500 (31 March 2022: 18,600 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Green Infra Wind Power Generation Limited 0.1% 0.19
0.19 019
Aggregale mnount of quoled invesbnents - -
Aggresate of ung d inr 0.19 019
Apgregate provision for diminution in vatue of i . -
17T Long term loans and advances
(Rupees in millions)
As at As af

Ll ol 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good:
Capital advances 64.24 0.69
Advance tax and tax deducted al source (nel of provisions) 3651 11.63

100.75 1132




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial state ments for the year eaded 31 March 2023 (Continued)

18

9

20

Other non-<urreat assets

{Rupees in milltions)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prepaid expenses 5.96 3.40
Margin money deposits with ovigina) inaturity of more (han 12 months 295 0.38
Fixed depesit account with original maturity of nore than 12 months 10117 127.12
Security deposils 170.62 159.17

280.70 290,07
laventories
(Ar lower of cost and ner realisable vatue)
Rupees in millions)
As at As at
Particulars 30 March 2023 31 March 2022
Food and beverages 15.56 1994
Stores and operating supplies 72.54 38.17
38.10 58.07
S
Trade receivables
Rupevs in millions)
As at As at

Partlculars

31 March 2023 1 March 2022

Recelvables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for

payewent:
- Unsecured, considered geod
- Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provisioa for doubtful receivables

Otlier receivables:
- Unsecured, censidered good

0.32 3.51
0.32 351
982 341
83.87 63.63
83.87 63.63

34,69 67.14




SCHLOSS BAN GALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {Continued)

20

‘Trade receivables {Continued)
As at 31-03-2023

Outstanding for followlog periods from date of cramsaction

Particulars Lessthan§ 6 mooths-1 | — 1.3 years More than Total
months vear 3 veurs
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 8387 082 - 84.69
(1i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considersd doubtfl - - - - -
(iv) Drigp 1 Trade receivables - idered good = - = - -
(v} Disputed Trade receivables — considersd doubtfd - . E = .
Less; provision for doublful debis - - - - -
Total 83.87 0.52 - - - 84.6%
As at 31-03-2022
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 More tham Total
1-2years 2-3vyears
months vear 3 vears
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 63.63 35 - - - 67.14
{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - E =
{iv) Digputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - -
{v} Disputed Trade receivablies — considered doubtful - - - - - -
Less: prowigion for doubtfut debts - - - - - -
Total 63.63 .51 - - - 67.14




SC HLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the fimaneial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023 (Continued)

11

1

23

Cash and bank balances

{Rupees in miilions)

As at As at
Partlevlars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cask ggulvalents:
Cash on hand 1.03 .74
Balance with banks
- ity CWITENT ACCOUNLS 3832 143.04
- in fized deposit account with original mawurity of less than 3 monihs 37000 360.00
Cther bank balances
- in. deposil accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 128.58 13.00
537.90 516.78

Short-term loans and advances

(Rupees in mitlions)

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good:
Security deposits 040 523
Advance to suppliers 6.06 524
Prepaid expenses 29.50 N4
Balances with government authorities 18.04 18.45
Loans and advances to employees 1.72 0.23
Sﬁilz 6069
Other current assets
fRupees im mitfions)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 M March 2022
Other than related parties
[nierest accrued op deposils 14.69 L7
Other Receivable &M -
Unbilled revenue 5028 9.0
70.68 .70




SCHLOSS BANG ALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to tbe financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023 (Continued)
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25

26

27

28

Revenue (rom operations

Particulars

(a) Sale of products:
Food and beverages revenuve

(h) Sale of services:
Room income
[ncome from rental and related services

Other ailied services (laundry income, heaith club income, airpont transfers, membership ete.)

Orther income

Particulars

lolacest income

- fixed deposil

- others

Prowvision no longer required written baek

Compensated absenee written back (Refer Note 36)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)

Nel gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (net)
Miscellaneous income

Consumption of food and beverages

Partlculars

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: lnventory al the end of the year

Employee benellts expense

Particulars

Salaries and wages

Contribution o provident fund, employees state insurance and labour welfare fund (Refer note 37)

Gratuity expenses (Refer note 37)
Compensated absences (Refer nole 35)
S1aff weifare expenses

Finance costs

Particulars

Interest expense on:

- Term loans

- Working Capital Term Loan

- Compulsorily eonvertibie debentures (CCDs)

- [nter corporate deposil

- Finance iease and Others
Other borrowing costs {term ioan fee, processing fee and advisory fee)
Loan prepayment Charges

and amortisation

Property, Plant & Equipments
assels

For the year ended 31
March 2023

1,258.26

1,409.28
223.58

147.44
1,780.30

305850

For the year ended 31
March 2023

22,68
208

b2 |
037
15.M

For the year ended 31
March 2023

19.90
238.70
258.60

15.56
243.04

For the year ended 31
March 2023

380.85
14.76
6.45
0.9
13.60
416.57

For the year ended 31
March 2023

1,007.25
10.14
172.29
146.35
0.02
2.52

1.428.57

For the year ended 31
March 2023

179.84
288.61
468.45

(Rupees in niiffions)
For the year ended 31
March 2022

49173

396.08
210.05

4812
654.25

1.145.98

(Rupees iy mitllons)
For the vear ended 31
March 2012

6.01
137

037
4,25

19.39
1.3

Runees tn ntillions)
For the year ended 31
March 2022

2115
109.04
136,19

19.9
110.29

(Ripees in millions)
For the year ended 31
March 2022

233.79
12.60
0.74

39.94
287.07

{Runees in milijons)
For the year ended 31
March 2022

977.63
9.43
157.79
46.28
1.17
8.24
28.00
1.228.54

For the year



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

30 Other expenses

fRupees in miilions)

For the year ended 3T For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2023 March 2022
Consumption of stores and operating supplies 69.18 4739
Power and fuel 65.74 56.94
Rent 128.76 128.76
Repairs and maintenance E
- buildings 34.00 18.43
- plant and machinery 48.74 43.14
- others 36.34 20.66
Insurance 2.9 10.49
Communication 3.26 348
Travelling and conveyance 2.09 285
Guest fransport 1541 6.80
Printing and stationary 6.14 228
Sales and credit card commission 3947 10.14
Business promotion 10601 41.92
Management fees (Refer note 35) 19289 43.37
Legal and professional fees 38.42 49.36
Payment to auditor's (Refer note below) 1.80 1.70
Rates and taxes 62.17 86.64
Net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation - 0.54
Provision for doubtful debts 1.84 -
Baok charges 0.72 0.29
Miscellaneous Expenses 94.92 47.68
965.01 622.86
Payment to auditor’s (excluding taxes) (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2023 March 2022
Statutory audit 1.80 1.70
Reimbursement of expenses - -
1.80 1.70




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes io the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

31

32

33

34

5

Contlngent Liabilities and commitments

{a) Contingent liabilities (Rupees in millions}

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Disputed Statutory liabilities {refer note below} 41.64 38.53

41.64 38.53
Note:
The breakup of dispured stamiory liabilities is as under: {Rupees in millions)

) As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Department In appeals

Service tax * 40.36 37.41
VAT# 1.28 112
41.64 38.53

*Service 1ax department has raised demand on HLV Limited vide Show Canse Matice (*SCN"Y on account of disaliowance:

{a) of CENVAT availed on debit notes taised by Leela Lace Holding Private Limited for service tax paid on lease rental under Volumtary Compliance
Encouragement Scheme ("VCES") introduced by Ministry of Finance, Government of India to encourage payment of taxes on undisciosed income;

{h) on accounl of classification of in-room dining and mini bar under room accemmodation (HLV Limited has paid service tax on in-room dining and mini bar
service under restaurant category {department has consideced the said services under room accommodation category to levy tax) and

{¢) of abatement claimed under rent-a-cab on account of input availment on car washing, maintenance etc.

Order 1o SCN was received in favour of HLV Limited. However, in departmiental query the issue was raised again and the department has filed an appeal before

CESTAT against the order received in favour of HLV Limited

# Deputy Commissioner of Comrmercial taxes has raised demand vide show cause notice (SCN) on account of following:

{a) Disallowance of input credit on account of non-filing of retumn by vendors along with interest.

{b) Dy Commissioner aiso fevied penalty for delay in making payment of taxes,

Subsequently the tax amount of Rs. 08 miflion has been paid by the company The interest and penalty amount has been walved as per govt order number FD 49
CSL 2021 dated 29 March 2021. Thus the maner has achieved clasure.

(b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed and not provided for (net of advances) amounts to Rs 125.19mn.(Peevious ycar Rs Nil}

Expenditure in foreign currency (om basis} {Rupees in mitlions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2023 March 2022
Other expenses (advertisement fee, commission foe, sales and marketing fee, reservation fee etc.) 64.66 24.21
4,66 24.21
Detalls of imporied and indigenous consumption (Rupees in millions}
For the vear ended 31 March 2023 For the vear ended 31 March 2022
particul Amount % of totai Amount % of total
articufars consumption consumption
[mported
Indigenous 243.04 100.00% 110.2% 100.00%
243.04 100.00% 110,29 100.00%
Value of imports on CIF basis (Rupees In millions}
For the year ended For the year ended 31
1
Particolars 31 March 2023 March 2022
Property,Plant and Equipment 30,99
30.99
Earnings per share

Eamnings Per Share is calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - 'Eamings Per Share’ - (A3-20) prescribed under Seetion 133 of the Companies Act,

2013
(Rupees in willions except per share data)

For the year ended For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2023 March 2022
Loss after 1ax (440.37) {1,539.71)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares:
Considered in calcuiation of Basic EFS 201,185,690 2,01,18,690
Considered in calculation of Diluted EPS 2,01,18,690 2,01,18,690
Face value per Equity Share (Rupses) 10 10
Eamings Per Share (Rupees)
Basic (21.89) {76.53)
Diluted * (21.89) {76.53)
" anti-dilutive, resulting in a decrease in loss per share from continuing ordinary activities, the effect thereof has been ignored whilst

share



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

36 Related party disclosures

(a) Names of retated partles

(i Ultimare Holding company
BSREP 1 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC} Limited, ultimate holding company (w.e.f 30 Mareh 2022)
BSREP 111 India Ballet Pte. Lid. (Till 30 March 2022)

{ii} Holding company
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings {DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company {(w.e.f 30 March 2022)
BSREP 111 India Ballet [ Pte. Lid. (Till 20 March 2022)

(il Fellow subsidiaries

Schloss HMA Privale Limited

Schloss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (Till 30 March 2022}
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited

Leela Palaces and Resorls Limited

Tulsi Palace Resont Private Limited (w.e.f 3rd May 2021)
Moonhurg Power Private Limited {w.e.f 29th March 2023)
Schloss Tadoba Private Limited (w.e.f. 16th Augnst 2022)

{iv) Key managerial personnel

Mr. Anuraag Bhatnagar, Director

My. Ravi Shankar,Director

Mr. Kunal Chauhan, General Manager (Till 16 July 2021}

Mr. Madhav Sehegal, General Manager (w.e.f 14th Auguost 2021)
Mr. Subrat Sinha, Financial Controfier

{¥) Oiher related parties

Schioss Chanakya Private Limited (w.e.f 31 March 2022)

{b) Transaetions during the year {Rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended 31

Partleulars 31 March 2023 March 2022
Management fees expense

Schloss HM A Private Limited 192.89 43.37
Reimbursement of expenses paid to / {received {rom)

Schloss Chennai Frivate Limited L41 0.13
Schloss HMA Private Limited 2166 13.55
Schloss 'daipur Private Limited 0.27) 0.56
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (0.24) {0.14)
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited - {0.1%
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited (155.58) {0.23)
Tnterest income on capex Timit utilisation {refer note SA)

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.035 -
Inter corporate deposit taken

Sehloss Udaipur Private Limited - 975.00
Schloss HMA Private Limited - 210.00
Schloss Chennai Private Limited - 565.00
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - 195.00
Inter corporate deposit settlement

Schloss HMA Private Limited - 210.00
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited - 37000
Schloss Chennai Private Limited - 165.00
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 117.94 77.06
Inierest on inter corporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 87.50 23.27
Schloss HMA Private Limited - 12.14
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 5000 4.89
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 9.29 1.99

Tnterest om 10.50%; unsecured compulsorily eonvertible debentures

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt, Limited, holding company 172.29 157.79%
Managerlal remuneration®

M. Kunal Chauhan - 4,44

Mr. Madhav Sehegal 13.27 6.66

Mr. Subrat Sinha 403 374

* T 5

Mgl repm
{Foripaby-as awhigle.
Qe T T




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {Connnued)

36 Related parcy disclosures (Continued)

37

{¢) Outstanding balanees (Rupees in milllons}

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payahles (Including provisions)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 54.96 1338
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited - 030
Schloss Chennai Prvate Limited 1.64 0.10
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 0.28

Other receivable

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - 0.14
Trade receivahle

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited - 0.16
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited - 0.04
Other advances

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.02 P

Receivable against reimbursements

Schloss HMA Private Limited - L.59
lnter corporate deposit taken

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited T00.00 700,00
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 400,00 400.00
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - 117.94
Tnierest on intercorporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 79.18 .43
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 48,258 0.25
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - .55
Interest accrued but not due on 10.50% unseeured compulsorily convertible debentures

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings {DIFC) Pyvt. Limited, holding company 288.82 138.07

10.50% unseeured eompulsorily convertible debentures
BSREP IH India Ballet Il Pte. Lid. - s
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 1,502.75 1,502.75

{d) Corporai¢ guarantee

Company's fellow subsidiaries i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limited aod the ultimate holding company i.e. BSREP 11 India
Ballet Holdings {DIFC} Limited (from 31 March 2022) and BSREP (Il India Ballet Pte, Ltd. (upto 30 March 2022) have given corporaic guarantee and fellow
subsidiaries also created charge over their total assets for the term loan and working capital facility availed by the Company.

Employee heneflts
{a) Drefined contribution plan

The Company makes provident fund contributions 1o defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of the payroll costs to find the benefits. The contributions payable under these plans by the Company are at rates specified in ihe rules of the
schemes.

The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The araount as an expense towards contribution 10 provident fund, employees state

insurance and labour welfare fund for the year aggregated to Rs. 14,76 millions (Previous peried Rs. 12.60 miliions).




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

37 Employee benefits (continued)

() Defined henefit plan

Ceraenity:

The Company operates posi-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The Company has partly funded the defined benefit plan for eligible employees.
The scheme provides for lumpsum payment 1o eligible employees on retirement, death while in empleyment or on termination of employment, of an amount
cquivalent 1o 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. The unfunded
portion as well as the amounts in excess of the limit are to be bome by the Company as per policy Eligibility occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost are measured using the projected unil credit method with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date.

The employees of HLY Limited were eligible and covered under the existing Group Gratuity-cum-Life assurance policies administered through HLY Limited,
Employee Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme. On 16 October 2019, the Company and Hote! Leelaventure Limited has entered into a Business Transfer
Agreement ("BTA") for acquisition of Bangalore hotel operations {the "Hotel"} of HLV Limited. Pursuant to BTA, there has becn complete transfer of employment
at the Hotel to the Company and the continuity of services for every employce at the Hotel was conserved. Pending transfer of plan assets and obligations under the
existing policy of HLV Limited, Employee Group Graluity Life Assurance Scheme to the new policy of Schioss Bangalore Private Limited as at the reporting date,
the Company has considered the fair value of plan assets and obligations pertaining to the transferred employees at the hotel as accumulated under the existing

policies for the purpose of actuarial valuation.

The following details summarises the position of assets and obligations relating 10 the ratuity plan:

(€} Amaunts recognised in the statement of oroflt and loss

{a) Changes In the present value of the defined benefits obligation (Runees In mitlions}
AS at Asat
Partieulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 26.36 31.92
Acquisition adjustment
Lnterest cost 1.92 2.16
Current service cost 4.71 351
Benefits paid (5.59}
Actuarial {gain) { loss on obligation (1.96) (5.65)
Present value of defined benefit obligation al the end of the year 31.02 2636
(b)Y Falr value of plan assets fRupees in millions)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 112 329
Acquisition adjustment - .26
Actuarial return on plan assets 0.32 (0.59)
Emplayer Contribution 6.60 .
Benefits paid (1.84)
Fair value of plan asseis ai the end of the year B.04 1.12
(¢} Amounts recognised in the balanee sheet Rupees in miflions)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 3102 26.36
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 8.04 112
Liability to be recognised in the balance sheet 22,98 25.24
Recognised as:
Long-term provisions (Refer note 7) 19.34 24.68
Short-term provisions (Refer note 10} 3.85 058
(d) Movement in the liabllity recognized in the balance sheet (Ruoees In millions}
Particulars Asat As at
3i March 2023 31 March 2022
Net liability al the beginning of the year 26.36 31.92
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 434 0.62
Benefits paid - (5.59)
Actuarial return on plan assets 0.32 0.59)
Acquisition adjustraent
Net liability a1 the end of the year 302 2636

Rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2023 March 2022
Current service cost 4.71 351
Interest cost 1.92 2.1%

Expecied return on plan assets (0.03) (0.22)

(gain) / loss recognized in the year



SCHLOSS BANG ALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

37 Employee benefits (continued)

(M Actuarial gain / loss on obllgation (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2023 March 2022
Aetuarial (gain] / loss arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain} / loss arising from change in financial assumption (0.41) (.79
Actuarial (gain} / loss anising from expenienee adjustment {1.55) (3.86)
Aetuarial (gain} / loss on obligation (1.96) {5.65)

{g)} Actuarial galn / loss on plan assels

{Rupees in millions}

For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2023 March 2022

Expected return on plan assets 0.08 0.22
Actual return on plan assets 0.32 {0.59)
Actuarial gain / {loss} on plan assets 0.24 {0.81)

{h) Actuarial assumptions

. As at As at
Fesiculags 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.39% 7.26%
Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00%
Expected raie of salary increase 7.01% 700%

Mortality rate

100% of 1ALM (2012-14)

100% of TALM (2012-14)

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rale is generally based upon the market yields available on government bonds
at the aceounting date relevant to currency of benefit payments for a term that maiches the liabilities. Salary growth raw is Company’s long-term best estimale as 1o
salary increases and takes into aecount the inflation, seniority, prometion, business plan, HR policies and other relevant factors on long-term basis as provided in

relevant accounting standard.

Compensated absences:

The reversal of compensated absences (non-funded) for current year is. 0 millions (Previous period ended 31 March 2022 amounting to Rs. 0.37 million} has been
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, based on actarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method.




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIYATE LIMITED
Motes to the finapcinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued}

38 Segment Information :

1. Primary Segment Disclosure- Business Segment

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
Hatel Realry Unallocated Total Hotel Realty  Unallocated Total
Revenue
Vet External Sales 2,814 97 223 58 1.038.55 935.79 21020 h145.99
Inter Segment Sakes
Taotal Revenue 2.814.97 223,58 3,038.55 935.7% 218.20 1,145.99
Result
Segment Resull 854 43 147.79 {12.21) 990.01 (442.30) 139.71 {8.57} (311 18]
Less: Finance Cosls 105.50 1,323.06 1,428 56 105 50 1,123.05 1.228.55
Profit before tax 854.43 42.29 {1,338.27) {438.55) {442.30) 34.21 {1,131.62) (1,539.71)
meome laxes
Profit after 1ax 854.43 4229 (133527 {438.55) (442.30) 3. (L131.62)  (1,539.71)
DTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 12,167.16 217863 59387 14,939.66 1220109 2.201.86 34570 14,951.66
Total Assets 12,167.16 1.178.63 593,87 14,939.66 1220109 120056 248,70 14,951.66
Segmem Liabilities 85309 1.155.70 15,114 54 17,123 33 499 82 115563 1500650 16,604 95
Total Liabilities 35309 1155, 70 15,114.54 17,123.33 49%.82 118863 15.M6.50  16.694.95
Capital Expenditure ne20 319.20 140055 1,400 55
Drepreciation and Amortisation Expense 447,82 10.83 4.81 468 46 454 28 1083 n 4638.32
Non cash expenses other thandepreciation 2622 2622 39.96 {8.51} 3145

Benci o

11. laformation about Secondary 2l
There is no geographical seginent 10 be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India




SCHLOSS BANG ALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes ¢ the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

39 Property, plant and equiprmenl as at 3] March 2023 includes asset acquired under finance Jease amounting to Rs 8.63 millions {Previous year Rs 9.39 millions)

4

42

43

capitalised in line with the requirements of Accounting Standard on "Leases” { AS-19). Depreciation for the period includes an amount of Rs 0.76 millions (Previous
Period: Rs (.76 millions} heing depreciation charged on these assets.

The year-wise break-up of the outstanding lease obligalion as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 in respecl of these assets are as under:

fRupees in millions)
Particulars As at Asat
31 Maorch 2023 31 March 2022
Assets taken on lease
Totel Minimuin Lease Payments at year end 1.60 1.60
Present Value of Minitmum Lease Payments 1.58 1.58
Mot Tater than one year
Minimum Lease Payments 1.60
Present Value 1.58
Later than one year but not later than five years
Minimum Lease Payments
Present Value
Later than five years
Minimum Lease Payments
Present Value

Unhedged foreign currenty exposures as at the reporting date

Fereign currency exposures not hedged by derivative insttuments are as follows:
Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Partlculars .
Faorelon currency Rupees in millions CUTTEnCY Runees in millions
Foreign curreitcy payables
= representing trade payables
EURO

usb

Foreign currency receivables
- representing advance
uso

The Company has taken leasehold land under leave and license agreement for a period of 31 years. The unexpired pericd under the said agreement as on 31 March
2023 is 14 years. The lotal rental expense under non-cancellable aperating leases rentals for the year ended is Rs. 128.76 millions {Previous period ended is Rs.
128.76 millions).

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:
(Rupees in millions}

Particulars Asat As at

33 March 2023 31 March 2022
Mot later than one year 101.44 96.61
Later than one year but not later than five years 588.57 £60.54

Later than five years

Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive syster of maintenance of information and documents as tequired by the transfer pricing legislation under sections
02.92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961, The Company’s transactions with related parties are at arms length as per the independent accountant's report for the year ended
31 March 2022,

Management believes the Company's transactions with related parties post 31 March 2022 continue to be at arms length so that The aforesaid legislation will not
have any impact on these financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and 1hal of provision for tax,

Utilisation of proceeds from issue of debentures {Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulors 33 March 2023 March 2022

Proceeds from issec of debentures

Utilisation during the period
Purchase of holel under slump sale
Stamp duty charges

Term loan upfront fee

Working capital requirement
Purchase of Hotel land

Unutilized amount ns at year end
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Motes to the Ninancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)
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44

Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Analysis

Current Ratio

Debt Equity Ratlo

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on Equity Ratlo

Inventory Turnover Ratlo

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratlo

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio

Net Capital Turnover Ratlo

Met Profit Ratio

Retarn on Capital employed

Return on Investment

Numerator

Current Aszefs

Mon - Current Borrowings +

Current Bocrowings

Profit before Tax + Interest (Met)
+ Depreciation and amortizsation
expenses

Met Profit after taxes

Cost of Goods sold

Revenue from operations

Net Purchases

Net Sales

Met Proft after tax

EBIT

Interest {Finance Income}

Denominator

Current Liabilities

Total Equity

Interest (Met) + Lease Payments +
Principal Repayment of long-term Debt

Averape Total Equity

Average Inventory

Average Trade Receivables

Average Trade Payables

Average Working Capital i.e. Average
Current Assets - Average Corrent
Liabilities

Net Sales

Capital Employed

[nvestment

31st March 2023 315t March 2022
0.49 0.44
{7.38) 9.18)
141 Q.1
0.22 1.52
33 2.01
40.03 24.74
1.75 0.34
{3.38) {092y
0.14) (1.34)

0.03 (0.01}

% Change

-20%

833%

-85%

66%

268%

89%

133%

Remarks

Inctease in current ratio is primarily on account
of increase in advances to suppliers,

Decrease in debtfequity ratio is primanly on
account of profits for the year

increase in DSCR is on account of increase in
EBITDA in the currenl year as compared la
previous year.

Decrease in retum on equity is pomarily on
account of business losses for the consecutive
two years

Inctease in inventory turnover ratio is primarily
on account of increase in business in cumrent
year as compared to previous year, Lower

business {n previous year on account of COVID,

Increase in Trade Receivable Tumover ratic s
primarily on account of increase in revenue.

Increase in Trade Payable Tumover ralic is
primarily on account of increase in purchases.

Decrease in Net Capital Tomover Ratio is on
account of decrease in working capital primarily
on account of increase in interest accrued on
inter-corpocate deposits.

Increase in MNet profit ratic is primarily on
account of increase in revenue,

Increase in ratio is primarily on account of (i]
increase in EBITDA due to betler business; and
(1i) increase in capital emplo
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